
   

 

 
 

 
Notice of a public meeting of  

Corporate Services, Climate Change & Scrutiny Management 
Committee (Calling In) 

 
To: Councillors Fenton (Chair), Rowley, Ayre, Baxter, 

Healey, Kelly, Merrett (Vice-Chair), D Myers, Steels-
Walshaw, K Taylor, Waller and Widdowson 
 

Date: Monday, 2 October 2023 
 

Time: 5.30 pm 
 

Venue: The George Hudson Board Room - 1st Floor West 
Offices (F045) 
 

 
A G E N D A 

 
 
1. Declarations of Interest   (Pages 1 - 2) 
 At this point in the meeting, Members and co-opted members are 

asked to declare any disclosable pecuniary interest, or other 
registerable interest, they might have in respect of business on this 
agenda, if they have not already done so in advance on the 
Register of Interests. The disclosure must include the nature of the 
interest. 
 
An interest must also be disclosed in the meeting when it becomes 
apparent to the member during the meeting. 
 
[Please see attached sheet for further guidance for Members] 
 

2. Public Participation   
At this point in the meeting members of the public who have 
registered to speak can do so. Members of the public may 
speak on agenda items or on matters within the remit of the 
committee. 

 

 



 

 

  
Please note that our registration deadlines have changed to 2 
working days before the meeting, in order to facilitate the 
management of public participation at our meetings.  The 
deadline for registering at this meeting is 5:00pm on Thursday, 28 
September 2023.   
 
To register to speak please visit 
www.york.gov.uk/AttendCouncilMeetings to fill in an online 
registration form.  If you have any questions about the registration 
form or the meeting, please contact Democratic Services.  Contact 
details can be found at the foot of this agenda. 
 
Webcasting of Public Meetings 
 
Please note that, subject to available resources, this meeting will be 
webcast including any registered public speakers who have given 
their permission. The meeting can be viewed live and on demand at 
www.york.gov.uk/webcasts. 
 
During coronavirus, we've made some changes to how we're running 
council meetings. See our coronavirus updates 
(www.york.gov.uk/COVIDDemocracy) for more information on 
meetings and decisions. 
 

3. Minutes   (Pages 3 - 8) 
 To approve and sign the minutes of the meeting held on 27 June 

2022. 
 

4. Called-in Item:   (Pages 9 - 52) 
 This report sets out the reasons for the call-in of the decision made 

by the Executive on 14 September 2023 in respect of the approved 
ward funding allocations.  The report also sets out the powers and 
role of the Corporate Services and Climate Change Scrutiny 
Management Committee (Calling-In) in dealing with the call-in. 

5. Urgent Business    
 Any other business which the Chair considers urgent under the  

Local Government Act 1972. 
 

Democracy Officer: 
Jane Meller 
  
Telephone: 01904 555209 
E-mail: jane.meller@york.gov.uk 
 

http://www.york.gov.uk/AttendCouncilMeetings
http://www.york.gov.uk/webcasts
http://www.york.gov.uk/COVIDDemocracy


 

 

 
 
 
 

For more information about any of the following please 
contact the Democratic Services Officer responsible for 
servicing this meeting: 
 

 Registering to speak 

 Business of the meeting 

 Any special arrangements 

 Copies of reports and 

 For receiving reports in other formats 
 

Contact details are set out above. 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



Declarations of Interest – guidance for Members 
 
(1) Members must consider their interests, and act according to the 

following: 
 

Type of Interest You must 

Disclosable Pecuniary 
Interests 

Disclose the interest, not participate 
in the discussion or vote, and leave 
the meeting unless you have a 
dispensation. 

Other Registrable 
Interests (Directly 
Related) 

OR 

Non-Registrable 
Interests (Directly 
Related) 

Disclose the interest; speak on the 
item only if the public are also 
allowed to speak, but otherwise not 
participate in the discussion or vote, 
and leave the meeting unless you 
have a dispensation. 

Other Registrable 
Interests (Affects) 

OR 

Non-Registrable 
Interests (Affects) 

Disclose the interest; remain in the 
meeting, participate and vote unless 
the matter affects the financial 
interest or well-being: 

(a) to a greater extent than it affects 
the financial interest or well-being of 
a majority of inhabitants of the 
affected ward; and 

(b) a reasonable member of the 
public knowing all the facts would 
believe that it would affect your view 
of the wider public interest. 

In which case, speak on the item 
only if the public are also allowed to 
speak, but otherwise do not 
participate in the discussion or vote, 
and leave the meeting unless you 
have a dispensation. 

 
(2) Disclosable pecuniary interests relate to the Member concerned or 

their spouse/partner. 
 

(3) Members in arrears of Council Tax by more than two months must 
not vote in decisions on, or which might affect, budget calculations, 

Page 1 Agenda Item 1



and must disclose at the meeting that this restriction applies to 
them. A failure to comply with these requirements is a criminal 
offence under section 106 of the Local Government Finance Act 
1992. 

 

Page 2



City Of York Council Committee Minutes 

Meeting Customer and Corporate Services Scrutiny 
Management Committee (Calling In) 

Date 27 June 2022 

Present Councillors Crawshaw (Chair), Fenton (Vice-
Chair), Fisher, Hollyer, Musson, Norman and 
Pearson 

Apologies 
 
 
Officers in Attendance 
 

Councillors Baker and Rowley (attended as a 
Calling-In Member) 
 
Janie Berry – Director of Governance & 
Monitoring Officer 
James Gilchrist – Director of Transport, 
Highways & Environment 
Darren Hobson  - Traffic Management Team 
Leader 

 
1. Declarations of Interest (5:31 pm)  

 
Members were asked to declare at this point in the meeting any 
disclosable pecuniary interest or other registerable interest they 
might have in respect of business on the agenda, if they had not 
already done so in advance on the Register of Interests.  No 
interests were declared. 
 

2. Public Participation (5:32 pm)  
 
It was reported that there had been two registrations to speak at 
the meeting under the Council’s Public Participation Scheme, 
both on Agenda Item 4 (the Called-in Item). 
 
Stephen Macey, a resident of Osbaldwick, stated that the 
source of the problem needed to be addressed; namely, the 
displacement of parking from the University, which was 
operating a pay to park arrangement contrary to its planning 
approvals. 
 
Amy Reynolds, on behalf of residents of Cavendish Grove, 
expressed concerns about the lack of consultation on the 
parking restrictions, stating that they would just move the 

Page 3 Agenda Item 3



problem, have no impact on safety, and were the precursor to 
introducing Respark. 
 
Written representations signed by 12 residents of Cavendish 
Grove objecting to the restrictions were received; these had 
been circulated to Members before the meeting.  
 

3. Minutes (5:38 pm)  
 
Resolved: (i) That the minutes of the meetings held on 9 

May 2022 be approved, and signed by the Chair as 
a correct record, subject to an addition to the 
minutes of the second meeting to record that Cllr 
Baker left the meeting before the vote, and that 4 
Members voted in favour of the approved proposal 
and 3 voted against it. 

 
4. Called-in Item: Consideration of Results from the 

Consultation about Parking restrictions in relation to 
Cavendish Grove, Tranby Avenue and Moore 
Avenue/Osbaldwick Lane Junction (5:40 pm)  
 
Members considered a report which set out the reasons for the 
call-in of the decisions made by Executive Member for 
Transport on 17 May 2022 in respect of the above matter, along 
with the Committee’s remit and powers in relation to the call-in.  
 
The decisions were contained in the extract from the relevant 
Decision Sheet at Annex A to the report.  The original report to 
the Executive Member Decision Session was attached as 
Annex B, The decisions had been called in by Cllrs Doughty, 
Rowley and Warters for the following reasons: 

 “The decision fails to respect the views of the majority of 
respondents to the ‘consultation’ and therefore once again 
brings the term ‘consultation’ into disrepute by CYC. 

 The decision seeks to impose double yellow lines onto 
sections of carriageway that are already covered by 
Highway Code obstructive parking that is adequately 
covered and can already be enforced by NYP who work 
closely with the Parish Council and Ward Councillors 
already. 

 As residents have already pointed out after the webcast of 
the decision session the double yellow lines as passed by 

Page 4



the Executive Member will make the parking situation 
worse for them. 

 The reason advanced for introducing such restrictions is 
supposedly ‘safety’ and yet the restrictions as passed by 
the Executive Member clearly fail to address the problem 
of University related parking, which if parked where it 
should be would remove the need for any restrictions, fail 
to address genuine safety concerns further down Tranby 
Av which will likely be made worse by this imposition as 
parking is just moved. 

 Passing of the double yellow line restrictions by the 
Executive Member so soon after Scrutiny was assured 
that CYC would be engaging with York University to seek 
solutions to the problem of University related parking is an 
admission that the Executive Member and Highway 
regulation staff have no faith in that initiative and have 
previously misled Scrutiny as to the likely effectiveness 
and/or sincerity of those involved in promoting such an 
approach. 

 There was absolutely no consideration throughout this 
process of the use of single yellow lines for example with 
parking restrictions imposed from 9.00 am to 5.00pm 
which would effectively stop the long term dumping of 
University and school related parking whilst 
inconveniencing residents the minimum. 

 The whole process has degenerated into a face saving 
exercise for highways officers to daub useless double 
yellow lines to carry on the long term aim of not solving 
the University related parking chaos the very same staff 
and Executive Member have deliberately transferred into 
Osbaldwick and Murton and to create as much disruption 
as possible in furtherance of pursuing Respark expansion 
- this is not how a responsible Local Authority Highways 
function should operate. 

 As call in Members who have followed this process closely 
and the many other traffic related matters under the 
Executive Member’s portfolio these last three years we 
have no confidence in the ability of the Executive Member 
to reach impartial decisions on matters like this and see 
this deliberately created situation and lack of will and 
action to solve the issue of displaced University related 
parking as an abuse of office.” 

 

Page 5

x-apple-data-detectors://0/


The Calling-In Members present at the meeting, Cllrs Warters 
and Rowley, each addressed the committee in turn, expanding 
on their reasons for the call-in and then responding to questions 
from Members.  The Executive Member for Transport, Cllr 
D’Agorne, then addressed the committee regarding his 
decisions, and responded to questions.  Next, the officers 
responsible for the report to the Decision Session spoke to 
clarify aspects of their report and recommendations and to 
answer questions.  Finally, Cllr Warters summed up on behalf of 
the Calling-In Members and the Executive Member summed up 
his position.   
 
During the above process, it was confirmed that: 

 The wording of the decision at Annex 1 should have 
reflected the recommendation in the report at Annex 2 that 
a lesser restriction than that advertised be implemented. 

 ‘Lesser’ meant for a shorter distance (10m) along 
Cavendish Grove. 

 The decision had been made after taking into account 
residents’ responses to the advertised proposals. 

 Cllrs Warters and Rowley, and residents, had made 
representations at the Decision Session on 17 May. 

 The Executive Member would be willing to write to those 
residents to explain the location of the restrictions. 

 A scrutiny meeting to examine issues with the University  
would be held within 6 months as agreed by the 
committee on 9 May (Minute 13 of the 2pm meeting 
refers), although a date had not yet been set. 

 
Under the provisions of the council’s constitution at the time the 
call-in was made, the following options were available: 

 A – not to refer the matter to Executive, in which case the 
original decision would be confirmed, or  

 B - refer the matter to Executive with specific 
recommendations. 

 
Members were invited to state which option they supported, and 
the reasons why.  A vote was then taken on the options.  Cllrs 
Crawshaw, Fenton, Fisher, Hollyer, Musson and Pearson voted 
for Option A, with certain qualifications as to the basis of that 
decision, while Cllr Norman voted for Option B.  It was therefore 
 
Resolved: (i) That Option A be approved and the decisions 

not be referred to the Executive for consideration. 
 

Page 6



(ii) That in approving Option A it is understood 
that that the Executive Member for Transport will 
write to residents in respect of the reduced 
restrictions agreed at the Decision Session, and the 
committee is mindful of its decision on 9 May to 
accept the Executive Member’s concessions offer in 
relation to parking issues in the area. 
 

Reason: Taking into account Resolution (ii) above, there are 
no grounds to refer the matter to Executive. 

 
 
 
 
Cllr J Crawshaw, Chair 
[The meeting started at 5.30 pm and finished at 7.26 pm]. 

Page 7



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

  
 

   

Corporate Services and Climate Change 
Scrutiny Management Committee (Calling In) 

2 October 2023 

Report of the Director of Governance 

Called-in Item: Resolution “X” on Ward Funding from Finance & 
Performance Monitoring Report – Executive meeting on 14 September 
2023 

Summary 

1. This report sets out the reasons for the call-in of the decision made by 
the Executive on 14 September 2023 in respect of the approved ward 
funding allocations set out in paragraphs 30 and 31 of the report.  The 
report also sets out the powers and role of the Corporate Services and 
Climate Change Scrutiny Management Committee (Calling-In) in dealing 
with the call-in. 

Background 

2. An extract from the Decision Sheet published after the Executive 
meeting of 14 September is attached as Annex A to this report.  This 
sets out the decisions taken on the called-in item.  The original report to 
the Executive, together with its annexes, is attached at Annex B. 

3. The decisions have been called in for review by the Corporate Services 
and Climate Change Scrutiny Management Committee (Calling-In) by 
Cllrs Hollyer, Hook and Smalley, in accordance with the Constitutional 
requirements, and on the basis of the detailed reasoning set out in 
Annex C attached. 
 
 

Consultation 

4. In accordance with the requirements of the Constitution, the calling-in 
Members have been invited to attend and/or speak at the Calling-in 
meeting, as appropriate, together with relevant Executive Member(s) 
and Officer(s). 

 

Page 9 Agenda Item 4



 

Options 

5. The Committee must follow the practice for dealing with called in 
business set out in the Scrutiny Procedure Rules in Appendix 5 of the 
Constitution. After debate and all contributions have been heard, the 
Chair will invite each Member of the Committee to state whether they 
consider the core principles identified in the Call In Request (Annex C) 
have been breached or not.   

6. In the event of the majority of Members finding no breach, the call in 
request will be immediately closed with no further action unless the 
Committee identifies any areas worthy of future exploration by the 
scrutiny function. 

7. In the event of the majority of Members finding a breach, the called in 
decision will be referred back in full for further consideration at the next 
appropriate meeting of the Executive. 

 
Analysis  

8. Members need to consider any breach specifically identified in the Call-
In Request in relation to the original report to the Executive and the 
consequential decision made.  As stated in the options identified above, 
the Chair will then guide the Committee on the constitutional 
requirements for handling the meeting and culminating in the 
Committee determining its position on any breaches.   
 

Council Plan 

9. There are no direct implications for this call-in in relation to the delivery 
of the Council Plan and its priorities for 2023-27. 

Implications 

10. There are no known Financial, HR, Legal, Property, Equalities, or Crime 
and Disorder implications in relation to handling the call in of the issue 
under consideration. 

Risk Management 
 
11. There are no risk management implications associated with the call in of 

this matter. 

Page 10



 

 
Recommendations 
 
12. Members’ views are sought on the Call In Request and specific breaches 

identified in Annex C. 
 

Reason: To enable the called-in matter to be dealt with efficiently and 
in accordance with the requirements of the Council’s 
Constitution. 

 
 

Contact Details 

Author: 
Dawn Steel 
Head of Democratic Services 
dawn.steel@york.gov.uk 
Tel: 01904 551030 

Chief Officer Responsible for the report: 
Bryn Roberts 
Director of Governance 
Tel: 01904 555385 
 
 

  
Report Approved  √ 

 
Date: 

 
20/09/23 

 

Wards Affected:  All   
 

For further information please contact the author of the report 
 
Annexes 

Annex A – Extract from the Decision Sheet produced following the Executive 
Meeting held on 14 September 2023, setting out the decisions made on the 
called-in item. 

Annex B – Report of the Chief Operating Officer and Chief Finance Officer to 
the Executive Meeting on 14 September 2023, 2023/24 Finance and 
Performance Monitor 1. 

Annex C – Call in Request from Councillors, Hollyer, Hook and Smalley. 

Page 11

mailto:dawn.steel@york.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



EXTRACT        Annex A 

Executive 
  

Thursday, 14 September 2023 
  

Decisions 
  

Set out below is a summary of the decisions taken at the Executive meeting 
held on Thursday, 14 September 2023.  The wording used does not 
necessarily reflect the actual wording that will appear in the minutes. 
  
Members are reminded that, should they wish to call in a decision, notice must 
be given to Democracy Servicew no later than 4pm on the Monday 18 
September 2023. 
  
If you have any queries about any matters referred to in this decision sheet 
please contact . 

 
  

8.               Finance & performance monitor 1 (18:24) 
  
Resolved: 
  

                      i.       Noted the finance and performance information; 

                     ii.       Noted that management actions have already been 

implemented to exercise budget management but that further 
controls are now needed; 

                    iii.       Noted that there will be a negative impact on the 
Council’s medium term financial position should the 
proposed mitigations not be delivered; 

                   iv.       Noted that further work and savings will be needed to 
fully mitigate the forecast overspend; 

                     v.       Noted that further work will be undertaken to explore 
the potential for generating income through provision of 
some non-statutory services such as green waste collection. 

                   vi.       Approved officers to take the actions needed to 
manage the financial position as outlined in paragraphs 14 
and 15 of the report. 

Page 13



EXTRACT        Annex A 

                  vii.       Approved increase in car parking charges by 10p per 
hour as set out in paragraphs 81 and 82 of the report to be 
implemented as soon as practicably possible. The Corporate 
Director of Place will liaise with the Executive Member for 
Economy & Transport to determine the exact date. 

                 viii.       Approved a further extension to March 2025 for the 
letter of credit to York Museums Trust as outlined in 
paragraphs 26 to 28 of the report. 

                   ix.       Noted the potential requirement for match funding in 
respect of the YMT grant bid as set out in paragraph 29 of 
the report. 

                     x.       Confirmed that the officer decision around ward 
funding allocations is implemented as planned (see 
paragraphs 30 to 31 of the report). 

  
Reason:     to ensure expenditure is kept within the approved budget. 
  
  
 

Page 14



 

 
 

Meeting: Executive 

Meeting date: 14/09/2023 

Report of: Ian Floyd 
Chief Operating Officer 
Debbie Mitchell 
Chief Finance Officer 

Portfolio of: Councillor Katie Lomas, 
Executive Member for Finance, Performance, 
Major Projects, Human Rights, Equality & 
Inclusion 
 

 

2023/24 Finance and Performance Monitor 1 

 

Subject of Report 
 

1. This report sets out the projected 2023/24 financial position and the 
performance position for the period covering 1 April 2023 to 30 June 
2023, together with an overview of any emerging issues. This is the 
first report of the financial year and assesses performance against 
budgets, including progress in delivering the Council’s savings 
programme.  
 

2. This report outlines the Council’s serious financial position with a 
forecast overspend for 2023/24 of £11.4m.   This is a significant 
overspend that is of serious concern and it is very clear that the 
Council cannot afford to keep spending at this level.  The general 
reserve is £6.9m and, whilst we have other earmarked reserves that 
we could call on if required, continued spending at this level would 
quickly see the Council exhaust its reserves.   

 
3. Given the scale of the forecast overspend, immediate action is 

needed to bring spending down to an affordable level, both within the 
current financial year and over the next 4 years, to safeguard the 
Council’s financial resilience and stability.   

 

Page 15



 

4. This report outlines the actions we need to take and identifies areas 
for further work.  If we take immediate action and make these difficult 
decisions now, this will ensure the future financial stability of the 
Council and that we can continue to provide services for our 
residents.  It is vital that the mitigations are delivered, and the 
forecast overspend is reduced. 
 

Benefits and Challenges 
 

5. This report is mainly to note the latest financial projections and 
current performance.  The main challenge is delivering on agreed 
savings whilst also identifying further reductions in expenditure.  The 
main benefit of approving the recommendations will be the ongoing 
financial stability of the Council.  
 

Policy Basis for Decision 
 

6. This report is mainly to note the latest financial projections and 
current performance.  The ongoing financial resilience and stability of 
the Council will be essential to ensuring that Council priorities can 
continue to be achieved.   
 

Financial Strategy Implications 
 

7. This report sets out the projected financial position and identifies a 
range of actions that are necessary in order to reduce expenditure, 
both within the current financial year and over the next 4 years to 
safeguard the Council’s financial resilience and stability. 
 

Recommendation and Reasons 

 
8. Executive is asked to: 

• Note the finance and performance information. 

• Note that management actions have already been 
implemented to exercise budget management but that further 
controls are now needed. 

• Note that there will be a negative impact on the Council’s 
medium term financial position should the proposed 
mitigations not be delivered. 

• Note that further work and savings will be needed to fully 
mitigate the forecast overspend. 

Page 16



 

• Note that further work will be undertaken to explore the 
potential for generating income through provision of some 
non-statutory services such as green waste collection. 

• Approve officers to take the actions needed to manage the 
financial position as outlined in paragraphs 14 and 15. 

• Approve increase in car parking charges by 10p per hour as 
set out in paragraphs 81 and 82 to be implemented as soon 
as practicably possible.  The Corporate Director of Place will 
liaise with the Executive Member for Economy & Transport to 
determine the exact date. 

• Approve a further extension to March 2025 for the letter of 
credit to York Museums Trust as outlined in paragraphs 26 to 
28. 

• Note the potential requirement for match funding in respect of 
the YMT grant bid as set out in paragraph 29. 

• Confirm that the officer decision around ward funding 
allocations is implemented as planned (see paragraphs 30 to 
31). 

 
Reason: to ensure expenditure is kept within the approved budget. 
 

Background 
 

Financial Summary and Mitigation Strategy 

 
9. The current forecast is that there will be an overspend of £11.4m.  

This is despite action being taken by managers across the Council to 
try and reduce expenditure.  If the Council continues to spend at the 
current level, and no action is taken, then we will continue to 
overspend and will exhaust our reserves and any other available 
funding.  The current level of expenditure is unaffordable and 
therefore we must take immediate action to reduce expenditure.   
 

10. As outlined in reports to Executive throughout the previous financial 
year, we have continued to see recurring overspends across both 
Adult and Children’s Social Care.  However, the underspends and 
mitigations that have allowed us to balance the budget at year end 
have generally been one off. Whilst the use of reserves to fund an 
overspend is appropriate as a one-off measure, it does not remove 
the need to identify ongoing savings to ensure the overall position is 
balanced.  The budget report considered by Executive in February 
2023 also included an assessment of risks associated with the 

Page 17



 

budget, which included the need to secure further savings and 
effectively manage cost pressures.   

 
11. Members will be aware that the financial position of local government 

is a national challenge and that the pressures being seen across both 
Adult and Children’s Social Care are not something that is unique to 
York.  Many Councils are experiencing significant financial pressures 
and struggling to balance their budgets now, so it is vital that we take 
immediate action to reduce our expenditure down to a sustainable 
level both within the current financial year and over the medium term.  
Taking decisive action now will safeguard the Council’s financial 
resilience and stability and prevent York being in a position where it is 
unable to balance its budget in future years. This means that, in 
addition to the actions proposed in this report, there will be a need to 
continue to identify further mitigations and savings for future years.   

 
12. A series of mitigations and cost control measures are already in place 

to reduce the forecast overspend but further measures need to be 
implemented.  Given the scale of the financial challenge, and the 
expected impact on budgets in future years, it is vital that every effort 
is made to balance the overall position.  It is recognised that this will 
require difficult decisions to be made to protect services for 
vulnerable residents.   

 
13. Corporate control measures are being implemented but they will not 

deliver the scale of reduction needed within the year.  Other savings 
proposals, including service reductions, will also be needed. 

 
14. The following measures will therefore be implemented with immediate 

effect. 
 

• Increase car parking charges by 10p per hour as outlined in 
paragraphs 81 to 82. 

• A freeze on recruitment, agency, and overtime wherever 
possible and safe to do so.  Some exceptions are in place for 
waste, social care, income generating posts and health and 
safety matters.  This will impact on service delivery in a 
variety of ways, depending on where the vacancies arise.  
Corporate Directors will monitor the position in their own 
directorates and highlight any risks as appropriate. 

• Introduce an officer procurement challenge panel to review 
all procurements, ensuring that they look to reduce costs and 
review service levels with an expectation that savings are 
delivered from contracts.  This will include not reprocuring 

Page 18



 

non statutory contracts where it is considered possible and 
safe to do so. 

• Identify alternative funding sources for the remaining one off 
items, totalling £650k, that are due to be funded from the 
Venture Fund and Business Rates Pool to allow this funding 
to instead offset the forecast overspend.   

 
15. Further work will also be done to consider whether savings can be 

realised from a range of other areas.  This work will start now, and 
any options considered in a future report to Executive or an Executive 
Member Decision Session as appropriate. 

 

• Explore the potential for generating income through provision 
of some non-statutory services such as green waste 
collection. 

• Review the current capital programme to identify any 
schemes that can be delayed so that we can also defer 
borrowing costs to generate a revenue saving in year.  This 
review will also consider whether schemes not yet started 
should progress and will include a review of ICT expenditure 
to identify any work that can be reduced or delayed. 

• Consider a reduction in expenditure on highways 
maintenance. 

• Consider further reductions in ward funding. 

• Review all grant payments to Community & Voluntary sector 
to identify any areas that could be reduced. 

• Review all fees and charges to identify where in year 
increases could be implemented. 

• Review a range of existing contracts and service levels to 
identify any that can be reduced. 

 
16. Garden waste collection and disposal is a non-statutory service 

that Councils can charge for and, whilst the service is valued by 
residents who produce green waste, it is not essential. Green 
waste collection in York is not universal, many homes do not 
receive the service.  There is an opportunity, taken by many 
Councils, to introduce a charge for the service.  There is the free 
option, available to all residents who produce green waste from 
their gardens to home compost.  Compost can be re used on the 
garden which is also the most sustainable use of organic material 
in the home.  As part of this work the Council will explore how 
those who do not subscribe to a green waste collection can be 
supported to compost more at home. 

Page 19



 

 
17. It is therefore recommended that the Council explores the 

potential to introduce a green waste charging in a similar scheme 
to the one that now covers the whole of North Yorkshire.  The 
service in North Yorkshire currently costs £43.50 per annum for a 
fortnightly collection. Should York introduce such a charge, 
revenues of between £720k and £1.5m per annum could be 
raised depending on the level of take up of the service (assumes 
25%-55%). There would also be potential operational savings 
should take up be at the lower level of the range. A future report 
to Executive will detail plans, costs, and potential income to inform 
budget planning for the 2023/24 financial year. 
 

18. Alongside these actions, officers will continue to carefully monitor 
spend, identify further mitigation, and review reserves and other 
funding to make every effort to reduce this forecast position.  
However, it is possible that it will not be reduced to the point that the 
outturn will be within the approved budget. The Council has £6.9m of 
general reserves that would need to be called on if this were the 
case. As outlined in previous reports, any use of the general reserve 
would require additional savings to be made in the following year to 
replenish the reserve and ensure it remains at the recommended 
minimum level.  

 
19. It must be a clear priority for all officers to focus on the delivery of 

savings plans during the year.  Corporate Directors and Directors will 
keep Executive Members informed of progress on a regular basis. 

 

Financial Analysis 

 
20. The Council’s net budget is £141m. Following on from previous years, 

the challenge of delivering savings continues with c£6m to be 
achieved to reach a balanced budget.  Early forecasts indicate the 
Council is facing net financial pressures of £11m and an overview of 
this forecast, on a directorate by directorate basis, is outlined in Table 
1 below.   

 
 
 
 

 

Page 20



 

Service area Net 
budget 

2022/23 
Gross 
Forecast 
Variation 

Mitigation 2022/23 
Revised 
Forecast 
Variation 
after 
mitigation 

 £’000 £’000 £’000 £’000 

Children & Education 25,083 5,074 -500 4,574 

Adult Social Care & 
Integration 

45,329 6,835 -3,000 3,835 

Place 22,605 -1,118 -140 -1,258 

Customers & Communities, 
Public Health & Corporate 
Services 

26,437 1,601 -1,000 601 

Central budgets 22,670 -1,000  -1,000 

Sub Total  11,392 -4,640 6,752 

Contingency -500  -500 -500 

Use of earmarked reserves   -4,250 -4,250 

Target for further mitigation   -2,002 -2,002 

Total including contingency 141,62
4 

11,392 11,392 nil 

Table 1: Finance overview 

 

Reserves and Contingency 

 
21. The February 2023 budget report to Full Council stated that the 

minimum level for the General Fund reserve should be £6.8m 
(equating to 5% of the net budget).  At the beginning of 2023/24 the 
reserve stood at £6.9m. 

 
22. Should the mitigation outlined in this report not deliver the required 

level of savings in the current financial year then this reserve is 
available to support the year end position.  However, in light of the 
ongoing financial challenges being faced by all Councils it is now 

Page 21



 

more important than ever to ensure the Council has sufficient 
reserves.  Therefore, should it be the case that we need to draw 
down a substantial amount from this general reserve in 2023/24, 
growth will need to be included in the 2024/25 budget to ensure that 
reserves can be maintained at an appropriate level. 

 
23. In addition to the general reserve of £6.9m there are a range of other 

earmarked reserves where funds are held for a specific purpose.  
These reserves are always subject to an annual review and these 
funds will again be reviewed on a quarterly basis and where 
appropriate to do so will be released to support the in-year position. 
Whilst this is a prudent approach that will ensure the financial 
resilience of the Council it is not a substitute for resolving the 
underlying overspends but instead allows time to develop future 
savings proposals in a planned way.  There is currently a balance of 
£31.2m available in earmarked reserves.  Following a review, it is 
considered appropriate that c£4m can be released from a range of 
areas.  This includes the £650k from the Venture Fund referred to in 
paragraph 14 above and £500k from the Public Health reserve.  We 
will also look at amounts held by fully owned Council companies to 
ensure that reserves are not being held at a level that is 
unnecessarily high. 

 
24. As in previous years a contingency budget is in place, and this is 

currently assumed to be available to offset the pressures outlined in 
this report.   

 

Loans 

 
25. Further to a scrutiny review, it was agreed that these quarterly 

monitoring reports would include a review of any outstanding loans 
over £100k. There is one loan in this category for £1m made to 
Yorwaste, a company part owned by the Council in June 2012. 
Interest is charged on both loans at 4% plus base rate therefore 
interest of 9.25% is currently being charged. All repayments are up to 
date. 

 
26. In August 2020, Executive approved a letter of guarantee to the York 

Museums Trust providing them with access to a maximum of £1.95m 
over the following 2 years, should it be required, to secure the 
museums as a going concern.  Subsequent extensions have been 
agreed by Executive in June 2021 and June 2022 meaning the 
current letter expires in March 2024. 

Page 22



 

 
27. YMT have requested that the letter of guarantee be further extended 

by one year to 31 March 2025 as they continue to operate with 
minimal reserves and need the letter of guarantee extending for their 
auditors to be able to sign off their accounts as a going concern. 

 
28. The letter of guarantee outlines the Council’s commitment to 

providing YMT with the funds should they be required, up to a 
reduced amount of £1m, on receipt of evidence that the funds are 
required (i.e., that reserves, and other income sources have been 
exhausted).  This allows the Trust to demonstrate that they are a 
going concern, as well as providing the certainty they need to 
continue to operate. 

 
29. The YMT have also passed the first stage of applying for an Arts 

Council Museum Estate and Development Fund grant to carry out 
vital improvements to the Yorkshire Museum roof which, if successful, 
would secure £4.9m.  Should the bid be approved, £490k of match 
funding will need to be identified.  The outcome of the bidding 
process will not be known until March 2024 and therefore 
consideration of any match funding will be reviewed as part of the 
annual budget setting process. 

 

Other 

 

30. At Full Council on 20th July 2023 the report of the Executive Member 
for Finance, Performance, Major Projects & Equalities outlined an 
amendment to the budget and specifically a new approach to 
allocating ward funding (available here Annex - Ward Budgets 2023-
27.pdf (york.gov.uk).  Officers then proceeded to enact that decision 
reflected in an officer report and decision available here Decision - 
Approval to implement a revised ward budget scheme as approved at 
full Council on 20th July 2023 (york.gov.uk) 

 
31. The decision reflects that a standard amount of the funding is still 

applied on a per councillor basis, but a proportion is allocated using 
the Indices of Multiple Deprivation, including a weighting which 
reflected the population of each ward.  Members are asked to confirm 
that the allocation is made as per the decisions referred to in 
paragraph 30 above. 

 

 

Page 23

https://democracy.york.gov.uk/documents/s168969/Annex%20-%20Ward%20Budgets%202023-27.pdf
https://democracy.york.gov.uk/documents/s168969/Annex%20-%20Ward%20Budgets%202023-27.pdf
https://democracy.york.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=6908
https://democracy.york.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=6908
https://democracy.york.gov.uk/ieDecisionDetails.aspx?ID=6908


 

Directorate Analysis 

 

Children and Education 

32. The forecast directorate outturn position is an overspend totalling 
£5,074k and the table below summarises the latest forecasts by 
service area. 

 

 2023/24 
Budget 

Forecast 
Outturn 
Variance  

£’000 

Forecast 
Outturn 
Variance  

% 

Children’s Safeguarding 21,309 +4,291 +20.3 

Education & Skills 14,624 +782 +5.3 

School Funding & 
Assets 

-7,642 -5 
0 

Director of C&E & 
Central Budgets 

-3,208 +6 -0.1 

Total Children & 
Education 

25,083 +5,074 
+20.2 

 

Mitigations to reduce forecast overspend 

Direct Payments Review -200 

Removal of budget contingency held within 
service 

-100 

Use of unallocated budget growth -50 

Grant income received in excess of 
amounts accrued 

-150 

Page 24



 

Revised position 4,574 

 

33. There has been significant progress made in reviewing and reducing 
the expenditure across Children & Education, with a substantial 
reduction in the use of agency staff and the cost of placements.  This 
is extremely positive and is against the national trend of ever 
increasing overspends in Children’s Services.  However, costs are 
increasing due to inflation, an increase in safeguarding activity 
reflecting greater complexity of needs and the challenges of a 
dysfunctional children’s social care market.      

 
34. As previously reported, the number of Children Looked After (CLA) in 

York has consistently been at a higher level than the budget was built 
to accommodate.  The number at the beginning of the financial year 
was 267, at the end of June it was 262.  Placement budgets are 
predicted to be overspent by a total of £2,608k, which is a significant 
improvement from the 2023/23 outturn which was £5,651k overspent.  
However, the pressure on this budget continues and is partly due to 
the limited market for children’s placements and the statutory 
requirements placed on local authorities to meet children’s needs, 
coupled with inflationary pressures which could worsen the position.  

 
35. In addition, there is a predicted overspend in the Corporate Parenting 

Staffing Teams of £317k as the staffing budgets make no provision 
for the extra costs of agency staff. 

 
36. Safeguarding Interventions is predicted to overspend by 165k due to 

a higher number of cases and the use of some agency staff to cover 
vacancies.  In addition, legal fees are predicted to overspend by 
£218k. 

 
37. An overspend in Disabled Children’s Services of £542k is mainly 

overspends on direct payments.  A specific project for direct 
payments is being investigated, which will clawback some of previous 
payments made and reduce ongoing costs. 

 
38. Home to School Transport shows a forecast overspend of £775k.  

This continuing overspend is due to an increase in numbers for post 
16/19 plus the provision of more specialist education provision locally.  
This is a much more cost-effective alternative to expensive out-of-city 
provision but has a consequent effect on this budget as we have had 
to provide more transport to establishments such as York College, 

Page 25



 

Askham Bryan, Choose 2 and Blueberry Academy.  The change in 
legislation to allow EHCPs up to the age of 25, resulting in 
significantly more students accessing this option, has also 
significantly increased our transport spend.   

 
39. The Dedicated Schools Grant (DSG) is currently projected to be on 

track to meet the targets set out in the Safety Valve recovery plan 
agreed with the DfE.   

 
40. The main pressure continues to be experienced within the High 

Needs Block and is due to the continuing increase in High Needs 
numbers, and increasing complexity, requiring expensive provision, 
especially in Post 16 and Post 19 provision and the education 
element of Out of Authority placements.  

 
41. The brought forward balance on the DSG as at 1 April 2022 was a 

deficit of £5,843k, following the first payment of additional funding 
under the Safety Valve agreement in March 2022.  The net position in 
2022/23 would have been an overspend of £1,380k, however a 
further £4,500k of additional DSG was paid during the year as the LA 
successfully met the targets set out in year one of the agreed 
management plan.  The result is a revised cumulative deficit of 
£2,723k to carry forward to 2023/24.   

 
42. The Safety Valve agreement commits the local authority to bring the 

DSG into an in-year balanced position by 2025/26.  Further payments 
are conditional on the local authority meeting the targets set out in the 
Management Plan, and reporting quarterly to the DfE on progress, 
with the eventual aim of eliminating the in-year deficit by the target 
date, with additional payments by the DfE eliminating the historic 
deficit at that point. 

 

Adults 

43. The projected outturn position for Adult Social Care is an overspend 
of £6,835k and the table below summarises the latest forecasts by 
service area.  This projection is based on customer numbers and 
costs in the first two months of the year.  The projection assumes that 
£1,832k of previously agreed savings will be made by the end of the 
year. 

 

 

Page 26



 

 2023/24 
Budget  

£’000 

Forecast 
Outturn 
Variance  

£’000 

Forecast 
Outturn 
Variance  

% 

Direct Payments 4,813 1,212 25.1 

Home and Day Support 1,234 2,442 197.9 

Supported Living 14,527 750 5.1 

Residential care 13,639 1,172 8.6 

Nursing care 4,905 575 11.7 

Short term placements 1,228 218 17.7 

Staffing (mostly social 
work staff) 

7,261 363 5 

Contracts and 
Commissioning 

2,341 -25 -1 

In House Services 4,817 -22 -0.5 

Be Independent & 
Equipment 

929 49 5.3 

Other -10,318 51 0.5 

Recharges -47 50 106.4 

Total Adult Social Care 45,329 6,835 15.1 

 

Mitigations to reduce forecast overspend 

Use of Market Sustainability and Improvement 
Fund for price pressures 

-800 

Recover all unused Direct Payments -750 

Stop any non-statutory activity -500 

Impact of introducing residential and nursing 
framework for providers 

-500 

Page 27



 

Review of high-cost packages and Supported 
Living Schemes 

-450 

Revised position 3,835 

 

44. A number of factors have come together to make an extremely 
challenging operating environment for adult social care. 

 
45. Most services that deliver care are commissioned by CYC from the 

independent sector where the cost of providing care has been 
increasing through inflation, for example in workforce and utilities 
costs. Partners such as the NHS are also under pressure meaning 
there is increased pressure on social care to support hospital 
discharge and to support people with increasingly high needs at 
home. Austerity, the pandemic and cost of living crisis have meant 
that more people than ever feel the need to come to the local 
authority seeking support. Our population is ageing and has the 
increased additional needs this brings. This is at the same time as 
increased additional responsibilities around the delivery of high 
quality, personalised, accessible and affordable support have come 
through the ‘People at the Heart of Care’ national strategy and 
regulatory requirements of the care quality commission, without the 
necessary additional resource to fund this. 

 
46. In order to manage within budget we will see significant reductions in 

the price we pay, the numbers of people we provide commissioned 
services to, the amount of the services which people receive and the 
type of commissioned service we provide. 

 
47. Introduction of robust and fair provider frameworks to limit the cost 

while maintaining the quality of residential homes, nursing homes, 
supported living and home care are being introduced. The 
introduction of brokerage services to link this provision to the 
assessment of individual need will ensure that we make best use of 
such services. We have in place assurance processes to check, 
challenge and where necessary decline assessments and requests 
for service. Over the coming months there is a refresh of the practice 
model to assure good assessments and decision making that 
requires all personal and community assets and assistive technology 
is used before services are put in place. 

 
48. The number of people entering residential and nursing care have 

been declining over recent months due to the introduction of 

Page 28



 

measures above. However, we have people placed in services in the 
past at higher rates and in order to deliver budget reductions, we 
need to see the total numbers of people in these settings reduce and 
this will happen over time. The completion of the refurbishment of the 
independent living scheme at Glen Lodge is also key to achieving 
this. 

 
49. This decrease in the use of residential and nursing care puts 

additional pressure on use of home care. The numbers of people 
receiving home care services will also reduce. This will happen 
through an improved of short reablement services, which requires 
retendering, a remodelling of the front door, which is planned through 
the improved practice model, increasing our brokerage capacity to 
cover all service areas, bringing our communities services closer to 
adult social care and improvements in the use of assistive 
technology. 

 
50. The following paragraphs outline the main variations. 

 
51. Be Independent is currently projected to overspend by £144k.  There 

is still a budget gap of £130k which needs to be addressed, together 
with a historical budget overspend on recharges of £50k.  In addition, 
staffing is expected to overspend by £102k due to an unfunded 
regrade of some of the posts in the team and to having a review 
manager post over establishment.  There is also expected to be an 
underachievement on the sales income budget as no further 
equipment sales are expected to be made (£49k). This is offset by 
additional income arising from Mediquip moving into the site at James 
Street. 

 
52. Yorkcraft is projected to overspend by £167k due to an 

underachievement of income (£106k) offset by an underspend on 
staff due to vacancies (£23k), and other minor overspends across the 
service. 

 
53. The Bungalow and Pine Trees are projected to underspend by 

around £111k in total mainly due to staffing vacancies in both 
services. 

 
54. Older People permanent residential care is projected to overspend by 

£759k due to both an increase in both the cost and the number of 
customers.  Nursing Care is projected to overspend by £165k. This is 
largely due to the less income from health for Continuing Health Care 

Page 29



 

than expected offset by a reduction in the number of people in 
nursing care.    

 
55. Physical & Sensory Impairment Community Support is projected to 

overspend by £821k due to a higher than expected average cost per 
hour on the framework contracts and the average income from 
customers being less than in the budget.   

 
56. The Older People Community Support Budget is projected to 

overspend by £765k. This is due to an increase in homecare provided 
and an increase in the average cost per hour.   

 
57. The Physical & Sensory Impairment Supported Living schemes 

budget is expected to overspend by £757k due to an increase in 
costs. 

 
58. Learning Disabilities Community Support Budget is projected to 

overspend by £478k, due to the average cost of a homecare 
placement being £250 per week higher than in the budget and the 
average cost of a day support placement is £10 per week higher.  In 
addition, the average health income received per customer is £511 a 
week less than budgeted for. 

 
59. Learning Disabilities direct payments are projected to overspend by 

£1,081k. This is due to the average weekly health income received 
per customer being £412pw less than in the budget. In addition, the 
average direct payment per customer is £115pw more than in the 
budget and the average transport direct payment per customer is £42 
pw higher than budget. This is offset by having 9 fewer direct 
payment support customers. 

 
60. The Residential Learning Disabilities – Working Age budget is 

projected to overspend by £619k due to the average cost of a 
placement being £176 a week more than in the budget and there is 
one less health funded customer.  This is offset by having one less 
customer in residential care compared to the budget. 

 
61. Mental Health Community Support Budget is projected to overspend 

by £243k, this is due to the average cost of a homecare placement 
being £110 a week higher than in the budget and the average cost of 
a day support placement is £36 a week more than budget. In addition, 
the average amount of health income per customer is £248 a week 
lower than in the budget - this is largely due to one customer's 
funding having ended in May 2023.  

Page 30



 

 
62. The Mental Health nursing care – over 65 budgets are expected to 

overspend by £154k, largely due to the average cost per customer 
being £577 pw and having 2 more customers than budgeted. This is 
offset by the average amount of s117 funding received per customer 
being £419 pw more than in the budget. This customer cohort is 
relatively small and relatively expensive so small changes in numbers 
can have a significant financial impact. 

 
63. The Mental Health nursing care – working age budgets are expected 

to overspend by £205k, this is due to the average cost per customer 
being £1,152 pw more than in the budget. Additionally, the average 
amount of s117 received per customer is £160 per week less than in 
the budget. 

 
64. The department acknowledges that the initial position is 

unsustainable and has come up with the following actions which will 
mitigate the forecast overspend.  

 
65. The government have allocated further Market Sustainability and 

Improvement Fund (MSIF) grant, £1.1m for York. Some of it will be 
invested in staffing but the majority will be used to fund the existing 
price pressures we face. 

 
66. Direct Payment Customers have unused balances in their accounts 

that are to be recovered and can be used non recurrently to offset the 
forecast overspend. 

 
67. We will stop any activity that is not directly meeting customers’ 

assessed needs. 
 

68. We are introducing a framework for our residential and nursing 
providers which will allow us to access beds at our framework rate. 
This may mean some customers are moved from their existing 
placements. 

 
69. There are significant overspends attributable to some high-cost 

customers, particularly working age Learning Disability (LD) 
customers in residential care and those with Physical & Sensory 
Impairment (P&SI) needs in Supported Living. The review will 
encompass whether the individual is due any income from Health to 
support their care package. 

 

Page 31



 

Place 

70. The forecast directorate outturn position is an underspend totalling 
£1,118k and the table below summarises the latest forecasts by 
service area. 

 

 

 

2023/24 
Budget  

£’000 

Forecast 
Outturn 
Variance  

£’000 

Forecast 
Outturn 
Variance  

% 

Transport 6,670 -166 -2 

Fleet -237 0 0 

Highways 4,633 325 7 

Parking Services -6,728 -1,108 16 

Waste 15,155 -1,076 -7 

Public Realm 3,298 0 0 

Emergency Planning 115 0 0 

Planning Services -134 380 -284 

Forward Planning 421 0 0 

Public Protection 766 5 1 

Community Safety 688 0 0 

Asset and Property Management 624 -90 -14 

Facilities Management 1,293 552 43 

Commercial Property -4,336 0 0 

Regen & Economic Development 406 0 0 

Housing Services -475 60 -13 

Management and Support 446 0 0 

Place total 22,605 -1,118 -5 

Page 32



 

    

Mitigations to reduce forecast overspend 

Increase parking charges by 10p  -70 

Reduce use of agency to cover sickness absence 
in public realm 

-60 

Do not undertake any winter bedding activity -10 

Revised forecast -1,258 

 

71. The primary reason for the underspend is continued strong 
performance from income particularly relating to parking. There are 
also underspends across waste from recyclate sales and lower than 
forecast waste tonnages. Offsetting these costs are the continued 
higher than budgeted utility costs across street lighting and Council 
offices. 

 
72. Car park income to 30th June has remained strong across the city at 

being £158k (8%) ahead of income to the corresponding date in 
2022/23 and £442k (27%) ahead of budget. It is not assumed that this 
increase will continue throughout the year however it is not 
unreasonable to assume that income will continue to be above 
budget. A current assumption of £1.2m ahead of budget is assumed 
in this forecast. That is offset by additional processing costs and costs 
across parking services. Income levels are monitored on monthly 
basis and the forecast will be updated regularly throughout the year. 

 
73. There is a forecast underspend of (£1,076k) across waste disposal 

and collection. This is from a combination of additional recycling 
income due to higher than budgeted commodity prices.  Income 
levels are forecast at £350k above budget which, although lower than 
2022/23, is higher than budgeted.    

 
74. Across Waste Collection operational costs are estimated at £300k 

below budget as vehicle repairs and hire are below budget as the 
fleet is relatively new. Residual waste tonnages across York and 
North Yorkshire are also lower than forecast which allows capacity 
within Allerton Park (£200k) to be filled with commercial waste from 
Yorwaste, providing additional income. 

 

Page 33



 

75. Early monitoring indicates a forecast shortfall in planning fees of 
£300k. This will be monitored closely, and the profile of planning 
income will be reviewed in light of the impact of the Local Plan. 

 
76. The budget for facilities management assumes full occupation of 

external partners at West Offices. There remains a void on floor two 
whilst let is still subject to final completion. This has led to a forecast 
shortfall of £380k. 
 

77. The energy budgets across Place were increased in 2023/24 to 
reflect the large increases in gas and electricity prices that occurred in 
2022/23. There have however been a further 30% increase in 
electricity prices in 2023/24 which have led to forecast overspends in 
Highways (£325k) and Facilities management £175k. 
 

78. The overall directorate forecast assumes that several income 
budgets, including commercial property and licensing, will outturn on 
budget. These will require monitoring throughout the year as there 
are potential pressures across services. 

 
79. Recognising the Council wide forecast position, further mitigation has 

been identified. 
 

80. As stated in the report there remains strong demand for parking 
across the city with income levels currently 10% above 2022/23 levels 
and over 22% above budget. Members could consider further 
increases in longer stay parking from November 2023 (which would 
link in with the St Nick’s Fayre and run up to Christmas). 

 
81. There are a number of options available to Members should they wish 

to see an increase in charges, and these can be broadly considered 
as 

• A flat increase – an increase of 10p or 20p could be added to 
all hourly charge rates which would increase revenues 
across the parking estate 

• An increase in the all day rate (over 5 hours) which is 
currently £16 at standard stay car parks (Marygate, Union 
Terrace, Monk Bar and St George’s Field). This charge is 
relatively cheap when compared to other cities and 
alternative providers in the city. Members could increase this 
to £18/ day or £20 per day 

 
82. The estimated net revenues that could be raised from such increases 

if demand remains strong and price elasticity is relatively low could be 

Page 34



 

as follows and would in effect reduce the Council spend on transport 
services. 
 

 Part Year 

£’000 

Full Year 

£’000 

10p Increase 60 145 

£18 All day 20 50 

Cost of 
increase 

-10  

 70 195 

   

20p Increase 110 265 

£20 All Day 40 100 

Cost of 
increase 

-10  

 140 365 

 
83. It is also recommended that across public realm the service 

ceases covering sickness and absence with agency staff. 
Members are asked to note that service levels will fall and the 
time to remove leaves and fly tipping and overflowing bins will at 
times be beyond Service Level Agreement levels. It is anticipated 
that this could save up to £60k over the remainder of the year. 
There is a further option in public realm to not undertake any 
winter bedding activity which could save up to £10k in the service 
budget. 

Corporate, Customers & Communities 

84. The forecast outturn position for the remaining areas of the Council is 
a net overspend of £600k and the table below summarises the latest 
forecasts by service area. 

 
 
 

Page 35



 

 

Mitigations to reduce forecast overspend 

Vacancy management and cost control measure across all 
areas 

 

-1,000 

Further review of Treasury Management and borrowing 
forecasts 

Revised position 601 

 

85. Within Customers and Communities, the most significant pressure 
arises from the continued pressure across Housing Benefit 
Overpayments as the move to Universal Credit reduces opportunities 

 

 
 Variance  Variance  

 Budget   

 £'000 £'000 % 

Chief Finance Officer 2,923 -48 -2 

HR and Corporate Management 2,545 105 4 

Customers & Communities 15,892 1,044 7 

Governance 5,063 500 8 

Public Health 14 0 0 

Total Corporate, Customers & 
Communities  

26,437 1,601 2 

    

Other central budgets and treasury 
management 

22,382 -1,000 4.4 

    

 

 

   

Page 36



 

to achieve income from recovering overpayments. Elsewhere there 
are overspends within business support following the loss of external 
payroll contracts. 

 
86. Within Governance department there are forecast pressures across 

legal services income recovery from capital fees and pressures 
regarding coroner fees. 

 
87. Across all these service areas Managers are being tasked with 

identifying mitigations that will reduce these pressures. These will 
include holding vacancies, cash limiting budget areas and striving to 
maximise income generation. This will be carefully monitored and 
reported back at future monitoring reports. 

 

Performance – Service Delivery 

 
88. This interim performance report is based upon the strategic indicators 

included in the Performance Framework for the Council Plan (2019-
2023) which was launched in late 2019. Following local elections in 
May 2023, a new Council Plan (2023-2027) is going through the 
formal approval stage and for the Q2 2023-24 Finance and 
Performance Monitor, there will be a new Performance Framework 
based on the new Council Plan and therefore a new suite of strategic 
indicators. 

 
89. The Executive for the Council Plan (2019-23) agreed a core set of 

strategic indicators to help monitor the Council priorities and these 
provide the structure for performance updates in this report. Some 
indicators are not measured on a quarterly basis and the DoT 
(Direction of Travel) is calculated on the latest three results whether 
they are annual or quarterly. 

 
90. A summary of the strategic indicators that have an improving direction 

of travel based on the latest, new, available data are shown below 
and the latest data for all of the core indicator set can be seen in 
Annex 1. 

 

• % of working age population in employment (16-64) – In 
Q3 2022-23, 85.5% of the working age population were in 
employment, which is higher than the national and regional 
figures (75.6% and 74.6% respectively) and the York 
performance gives the city a ranking of first regionally. The 

Page 37



 

figure for Q3 2022-23 in York is higher than seen in previous 
years.  

 

• % of adults that are physically active – The latest data 
from the Adult Active Lives Survey for the period from mid-
November 2021 to mid-November 2022 was published in 
April 2023. In York, 497 people aged 16 and over took part in 
the survey, and they reported higher levels of physical 
activity, and lower levels of physical inactivity, compared with 
the national and regional averages. Positively: 

 
▪ 70% of people in York did more than 150 minutes 

of physical activity per week compared with 63% 
nationally and 65% regionally.  

▪ 20% of people in York did fewer than 30 minutes 
per week compared with 26% nationally and 23% 
regionally.  

 

• Net Housing Consents – Housing approvals between 1st 
April 2022 and 31st March 2023 totalled 1,559 net additional 
homes. This total represents a significant increase compared 
to the previous 12-month monitoring period when just 327 
homes were approved and indicates a return to the relatively 
high annual consent figures experienced prior to 2021-22. 
Current approvals rates are similar to the levels achieved 
over the four-year period from 2017-18 to 2020-21. The main 
features of the consents approved were;  

 
▪ 1,303 of all net homes consented (83.6%) were 

granted on traditional (Use Class C3) housing sites; 
▪ Notable housing schemes were approved at Land 

North of Monks Cross (907), Land at Hospital 
Fields Road (85), Eastfield Lane, Dunnington (83), 
Cherry Tree House, 218 Fifth Avenue (48) with a 
further 84 homes approved on sites of 5 or less 
homes 

▪ A total of 253 student cluster flats were approved 
with Mecca Bingo, 68 Fishergate and Alton Cars 
York Ltd, 3 James Street both gaining approval for 
104 student cluster flats 

▪ At least 192 homes had a resolution to grant 
planning permission subject to legal agreements 
prior to 31st March 2023. These are in addition to 

Page 38



 

the 1,559 homes determined during the monitoring 
year. 

 

• Average number of days to re-let empty Council 
properties – The average number of days to re-let empty 
Council properties (excluding temporary accommodation) 
was 58 days at the end of Q1 2023-24. This figure had been 
reducing slowly from 108 days at the end of May 2022 and is 
now broadly in line with Q1 figures prior to 2022-23. The total 
number of void properties at the end of Q1 2023-24 was 60 
which is the lowest figure seen for a number of years.  

 

• Library Visits – Library visits (to all libraries, including 
reading cafes) during 2022-23 totalled 864,963, which is a 
large increase on the visits in the previous two years 
(617,771 in 2021-22 and 183,706 in 2020-21). This shows a 
very positive direction of travel. Figures for Q1 2022-23 
(240,908) continue this positive trend and are in line with pre-
pandemic figures. 

 

• Customer Centre – % served within target wait time – 
86% of customers were served within the target waiting time 
during Q1 2023-24. This is an increase on the figures during 
the same period in previous years (73% in 2022-23). 

 

• FOI and EIR – % of requests responded to in-time – 
89.3% of requests were responded to in-time during Q1 
2023-24 which is the highest figure seen since the end of 
2018-19. 

 
91. Strategic indicators that have a worsening direction of travel based on 

the latest, new, available data are; 
 

• Percentage of household waste sent for reuse, recycling 
or composting – The latest provisional data for the amount 
of household waste sent for reuse, recycling or composting 
was 33.4% within Q4 2022-23 which is a small decrease 
from 36.3% during Q4 2021-22. There was also a small 
decrease in the annual reuse, recycling or composting rate to 
41.3% from 43.2% last year. Whilst there has been a 
reduction in total household waste collected to 857kg per 
household from 906kg last year there has not been the same 
reduction in residual (approx. non-recycling) household 
waste – remaining above 500kg per household.  

Page 39



 

 

• Number of homeless households with dependent 
children in temporary accommodation – The latest 
available data shows that the number of households with 
dependent children in temporary accommodation has 
increased during 2022-23 from 22 at Q1 to 35 at Q4, which is 
51% of total households in temporary accommodation. 
Generally, the households with children rise and fall in line 
with the total households and there was a peak at the end of 
2021-22 where 57% were households with children. 
Numbers reduced during the height of the pandemic but have 
since been increasing and are now just above levels seen in 
the years before the pandemic. 

 
▪ The increase in numbers of households in 

temporary accommodation can also be seen 
nationally for 2022-23, and when looking at the 
total number of households in temporary 
accommodation per households in area (000s), 
York continues to perform positively compared to 
benchmarks (0.78 in York compared to 4.35 
Nationally, 1.1 Regionally and 16.54 in London). It 
should be noted that these figures are snapshot 
figures and therefore may fluctuate between the 
snapshot dates. 

 

Consultation Analysis 
 

92. Not applicable 
 

Options Analysis and Evidential Basis 
 

93. Not applicable 
 

Organisational Impact and Implications 
 

94. The recommendations in the report potentially have implications 
across several areas.  However, at this stage 

 
 

• Financial implications are contained throughout the main 
body of the report.  The actions and recommendations 
contained in this report should ensure the continued financial 

Page 40



 

stability and resilience of the Council both in the current year 
and in future years. 

• Human Resources (HR), Work will be needed to mitigate 
and manage the impact of a higher number of staff 
vacancies and any resulting impact on sickness absence.  
Savings proposals with staffing implications will follow 
appropriate consultation and HR policies and procedures. 

• Legal 
General 
The Council is under a statutory obligation to set a balanced 
budget on an annual basis. Under the Local Government Act 
2003 it is required to monitor its budget during the financial 
year and take remedial action to address overspending 
and/or shortfalls of income. Further work is required to 
develop and implement proposals that will allow the Council 
to bring its net expenditure in line with its income. There may 
be legal implications arising out of these proposals that will 
be considered as part of the development and 
implementation of those proposals.  If the Council is unable 
to set a balanced budget, it is for the Chief Financial Officer 
to issue a report under s114 of the Local Government 
Finance Act 1988 (‘a section 114 notice’).  
 
Car Parking Charges 
The Council can lawfully provide on and off street parking 
and set car parking charges pursuant to the Road Traffic 
Regulation Act 1984. A process under Schedule 9 of the Act 
must be followed to vary those charges under a Traffic 
Regulation Order. Public consultation is a part of the 
process.  
 

• Procurement, the creation, and servicing of a procurement 
challenge panel will require support from within the 
procurement team along with updated forward procurement 
plans from all services areas across the Council including 
within the procurement team. 

• Health and Wellbeing, reductions in spend in some areas 
could impact on the health and wellbeing of both our staff 
and residents.  The impact of any reductions in spend will 
continue to be carefully monitored so that implications can be 
considered and mitigated where possible. The use of 
currently unallocated funds from the Public Health reserve 
may also mean that additional investment is needed in future 
years.  

Page 41



 

• Environment and Climate action, there are no direct 
implications related to the recommendations. 

• Affordability, are contained throughout the main body of the 
report.  Where decisions impact on residents on a low 
income these impacts will be recorded in the individual 
Equalities and Human Rights analysis referred to below. 

• Equalities and Human Rights, whilst there are no specific 
implications within this report, services undertaken by the 
Council make due consideration of these implications as a 
matter of course. 

• Data Protection and Privacy, there are no implications 
related to the recommendations. 

• Communications, the information set out in this report 
necessitates both internal and external communications.  
With ongoing interest in the current state of Local 
Government funding, we anticipate this report will attract 
media attention.  A comms plan has been prepared to help 
make the information about the forecast overspend and the 
controls proposed clear and understandable, with 
opportunities to facilitate staff discussion arranged.  The 
Council Plan report is elsewhere on this agenda and 
communications will be aligned. 

• Economy, there are no direct implications related to the 
recommendations. 

 

Risks and Mitigations 
 

95. An assessment of risks is completed as part of the annual budget 
setting exercise.  These risks are managed effectively through regular 
reporting and corrective action being taken where necessary and 
appropriate. 

 
96. The current financial position represents a significant risk to the 

Council's financial viability and therefore to ongoing service delivery.  
It is important to ensure that the mitigations and decisions outlined in 
this paper are delivered and that the overspend is reduced. 

 
Wards Impacted 
 

97. All. 
 

 

Page 42



 

Contact details 
 
For further information please contact the authors of this Decision 
Report. 
 

Author 
 

Name: Debbie Mitchell 

Job Title: Chief Finance Officer 

Service Area: Finance 

Telephone: Ext 4161 

Report approved: Yes 

Date: 04/09/2023 

 

Co-author 
 

Name: Ian Cunningham 

Job Title: Head of Business Intelligence 

Service Area: Governance 

Telephone: Ext 5749 

Report approved: Yes 

Date: 04/09/2023 

 

Annexes 
 
Annex 1: Q1 Performance Tables - Council Plan Outcomes for Strategic 
Indicators 2019-23 

Page 43



Annex 1 - Performance - Council Plan Outcomes for Strategic Indicators 2019-23

Previous Data Latest Data DoT Frequency Benchmarks Data Next Available

Business Rates - Rateable Value
£252,801,976

(2022/23)

£243,494,496

(Q1 2023/24)
Monthly Not available

Q2 2023/24 data 

available in October 

2023

Median earnings of residents - Gross 

Weekly Pay (£)

£597.90

(2021/22)

£609.20

(2022/23)
Annual

National Data 2022/23: 

£642.20

Regional Data 2022/23: 

£594.10

2023/24 data available 

in November 2023

% of working age population qualified - 

to at least L2 and above

83.6%

(2020/21)

87.9%

(2021/22)
Good

Annual
National Data 2021/22: 

78.20%

2022/23 data available 

in October 2023

% of working age population qualified - 

to at least L4 and above

46.4%

(2020/21)

59.3%

(2021/22)
Good

Annual

National Data 2021/22: 

43.50%

Regional Data 2021/22: 

38.0%

2022/23 data available 

in October 2023

% of vacant city centre shops
8.50%

(2022/23)

7.73%

(Q1 2023/24)
Monthly

National Data 2021/22 

14.40%

Q2 2023/24 data 

available in October 

2023

GVA per head (£)
27,572

(2020/21)

30,684

(2021/22)
Annual

Regional Rank 

2021/22: 2

2022/23 data available 

in May 2024

% of working age population in 

employment (16-64)

81.80%

(2021/22)

83.60%

(2022/23) Good
Quarterly

National Data Q3 

2022/23

75.60%

Q1 2023/24 data 

available in November 

2023

Previous Data Latest Data DoT Frequency Benchmarks Data Next Available

P&R Passenger Journeys 2m

(YTD Dec 21

2.4m (Prov)

(YTD Dec 22)
Good

Quarterly Not available

Q4 2022/23 data 

available in September 

2023
Local bus passenger journeys 

originating in the authority area 

(excluding P&R)

5.54m

(YTD Dec 22)

7.26m (Prov)

(YTD Dec 22)
Good

Quarterly Not available

Q4 2022/23 data 

available in September 

2023

% of road and pathway network that are 

grade 4 (poor) or grade 5 (very poor) - 

roadways

22%

(2020/21)

22%

(2021/22)
Annual Not available

2022/23 data available 

in 2023

% of road and pathway network that are 

grade 4 (poor) or grade 5 (very poor) - 

pathways

3%

(2020/21)

4%

(2021/22)
Annual Not available

2022/23 data available 

in 2023

Area Wide Traffic Levels (07:00 -19:00) 

(Excluding A64) from 2009/10 baseline 

(2.07m)

1.77m

(2019/20)

1.34m

(2020/21)
0 Annual Not available

2021/22 data available 

in late 2023

Index of cycling activity (12 hour) from 

2009 Baseline (31,587)

114.00%

(2020)

101.00%

(2021)
Bad

Annual Not available
2022 data available in 

late 2023

Index of pedestrians walking to and from 

the City Centre (12 hour in and out 

combined) from 2009/10 Baseline 

(37,278)

104.00%

(2021/22)

123.00%

(2022/23)
Annual Not available

2023/24 data available 

in June 2024

% of customers arriving at York Station 

by sustainable modes of transport 

(cycling, walking, taxi or bus - excluding 

cars, Lift, Motorcycle, Train)

71.90%

(2019)

79.40%

(2021)
0 Annual Not available

2022 data available in 

late 2023

Well paid jobs and an inclusive economy

The DoT (Direction of Travel) is calculated on the latest three data points whether they are annual or quarterly.

All historic data is available via the Open Data Platform

Getting around sustainably

The DoT (Direction of Travel) is calculated on the latest three data points whether they are annual or quarterly.

All historic data is available via the Open Data Platform

Page 44



Previous Data Latest Data DoT Frequency Benchmarks Data Next Available

Proportion of adults in contact with 

secondary mental health services living 

independently, with or without support 

(New definition from 2021/22)

36%

(Q3 2022/23)

34%

(Q4 2022/23)
Quarterly

National Data 2021/22

26%

2022/23 data available 

in October 2023

Overall satisfaction of people who use 

services with their care and support

72.30%

(2020/21)

65.10%

(2021/22)
Annual

National Data 2021/22

63.90%

2022/23 data available 

in October 2023

% of reception year children recorded as 

being obese (single year)

7.60%

(2019/20)

8.90%

(2021/22)
Annual

National Data 2021/22

10.11% 

2022/23 data available 

in November 2023

Slope index of inequality in life 

expectancy at birth - Female - (Three 

year period)

6.2

(2019/20)

5.7

(2020/21)
Annual

Regional Rank 

2020/21: 3

2021/22 data available 

in September 2023

Slope index of inequality in life 

expectancy at birth - Male - (Three year 

period)

8.3

(2019/20)

8.4

(2020/21)
Annual

Regional Rank 

2020/21: 3

2021/22 data available 

in September 2023

% of adults (aged 16+) that are 

physically active (150+ moderate 

intensity equivalent minutes per week, 

excl. gardening)

66.5%

(2021/22)

70.4%

(2022/23)

Good

Bi-annual
National Data 2022/23

63.1%

2023/24 data available 

in April 2024

Previous Data Latest Data DoT Frequency Benchmarks Data Next Available

Secondary school persistent absence 

rate (10% absence) (recorded over 6 

terms)

12.10%

(2020/21)

26.22%

(2021/22)
Bad

Annual Not available

Data for 2022/23 will be 

available in March 

2024

Voice of the Child - Service Usage and 

Life Opportunities
Narrative Narrative N/A Quarterly Not available Narrative

% of children who have achieved a 

Good Level of Development (GLD) at 

Foundation Stage - (Snapshot)

75.60%

(2018/19)

70.90%

(2021/22)
Annual

National Data 2021/22

65.20%

Data for 2022/23 will be 

available in November 

2023

Average Progress 8 score from KS2 to 

KS4

0.22

(2018/19)

0.26

(2021/22)
Annual

National Data 2021/22

-0.02

Data for 2022/23 will be 

available in November 

2023

% of pupils achieving 9-4 or above in 

English & Maths at KS4 (C or above 

before 2016/17)

73.60%

(2018/19)

75.30%

(2021/22)
Annual

National Data 2021/22

56.10%

Data for 2022/23 will be 

available in November 

2023

%pt gap between disadvantaged pupils 

(eligible for FSM in the last 6 years, 

looked after and adopted from care) and 

their peers achieving 9-4 in English & 

Maths at KS4

29.00%

(2018/19)

32.00%

(2021/22)
Annual

National Data 2021/22

28.20%

Data for 2022/23 will be 

available in November 

2023

% of Year 12-13 (academic age 16-17) 

NEET who possess less than a L2 

qualification - (Snapshot)

87.10%

(2022/23)

88.20%

(Q1 2023/24)
Monthly Not available

Q2 2023/24 data 

available in October 

2023

The DoT (Direction of Travel) is calculated on the latest three data points whether they are annual or quarterly.

All historic data is available via the Open Data Platform

A Better Start for Children and Young People

Good Health and Wellbeing

The DoT (Direction of Travel) is calculated on the latest three data points whether they are annual or quarterly.

All historic data is available via the Open Data Platform

Page 45



Previous Data Latest Data DoT Frequency Benchmarks Data Next Available

Percentage of household waste sent for 

reuse, recycling or composting 

43.17%

(2021/22)

41.26% (Prov)

(2022/23)
Bad

Quarterly
National Data 2021/22

42.50%

Q1 2023/24 data 

available in October 

2023

Residual household waste per 

household (kg/household)

514.61kg

(2021/22)

503.49kg (Prov)

(2022/23)
Quarterly

National Data 2021/22

546.8kg

Q1 2023/24 data 

available in October 

2023
2,368

(2022/23)

(Flytipping)

715

(Q1 2023/24)

(Flytipping)
Monthly Not available

Q2 2023/24 data 

available in October 

2023

2,307

(2022/23)

Cleansing

586

(Q1 2023/24)

Cleansing

Monthly Not available

Q2 2023/24 data 

available in October 

2023

856

(2022/23)

Graffiti

165

(Q1 2023/24)

Graffiti

Monthly Not available

Q2 2023/24 data 

available in October 

2023

Carbon emissions across the city 

(tonnes of carbon dioxide equivalent) - 

(Calendar Year)

936

(2018)

912 

(2019)
Annual Not available

2020 data available in 

September 2023

Level of CO2 emissions from council 

buildings and operations (tonnes of 

carbon dioxide equivalent) 

3,657.56

(2020/21)

3,633.3

(2021/22)
Annual Not available

2022/23 data available 

in September 2023

Number of Trees Planted (CYC)
73

(2021/22)

1,099

(2022/23)
Good

Annual Not available
2023/24 data available 

in May 2024

% of Talkabout panel who think that the 

council are doing well at improving 

green spaces

43.26%

(2021/22)

38.30%

(2022/23)
Bad

Bi-annual Not available

Q1 2023/24 data 

available in September 

2023

Previous Data Latest Data DoT Frequency Benchmarks Data Next Available

Net Additional Homes Provided - (YTD)
402

(2021/22)

459

(2022/23)
Bi-annual Not available

2023/24 mid-year data 

available in December 

2023

Net Housing Consents - (YTD)
327

(2021/22)

1,559

(2022/23)
Good

Bi-annual Not available

2023/24 mid-year data 

available in December 

2023

Number of homeless households with 

dependent children in temporary 

accommodation - (Snapshot)

28

(2021/22)

35

(2022/23)
Bad

Quarterly Not available

Q1 2023/24 data 

available in November 

2023

Average number of days to re-let empty 

properties (excluding temporary 

accommodation) - (YTD)

78.73

(2022/23)

57.78

(Q1 2023/24)
Monthly Not available

Q2 2023/24 data 

available in October 

2023

Energy efficiency - Average SAP rating 

for all Council Homes

70.60

(2020/21)

70.60

(2021/22)
Annual Not available

2022/23 data available 

in September 2023

Number of new affordable homes 

delivered in York

224

(2021/22)

109

(2022/23)
Quarterly Not available

Q1 2023/24 data 

available in September 

2023

Average broadband download speed 

(Mb/s)

159.3

(2021/22)

177.5

(2022/23)
Annual

National Data 2022/23

106.09

2023/24 data available 

in September 2023

Superfast broadband availability
95.53%

(2021/22)

96.17%

(2022/23)
Annual

National Data 2022/23

96.58%

2023/24 data available 

in September 2023

Incidents - Flytipping 

/Cleansing(includes dog 

fouling,litter)/Graffiti - On Public/Private 

Land

The DoT (Direction of Travel) is calculated on the latest three data points whether they are annual or quarterly.

All historic data is available via the Open Data Platform

The DoT (Direction of Travel) is calculated on the latest three data points whether they are annual or quarterly.

All historic data is available via the Open Data Platform

A Greener and Cleaner City

Creating homes and World-class infrastructure

Page 46



Previous Data Latest Data DoT Frequency Benchmarks Data Next Available

% of Talkabout panel satisfied with their 

local area as a place to live

84.38%

(2021/22)

82.18%

(2022/23)
Bi-annual

Community Life Survey 

2020/21

79%

Q1 2023/24 data 

available in September 

2023

All Crime per 1000 population
70.7

(2022/23)

16.3

(Q1 2023/24)
Monthly

National Data Q1 

2023/24

22.8

Q2 2023/24 data 

available in November 

2023

Number of Incidents of ASB within the 

city centre ARZ

994

(2022/23)

254

(Q1 2023/24)
Monthly Not available

Q2 2023/24 data 

available in November 

2023

Visits - All Libraries
864,963

(2022/23)

240,908

(Q1 2023/24) Good
Quarterly Not available

Q2 2023/24 data 

available in October 

2023
% of Talkabout panel who agree that 

they can influence decisions in their 

local area

24.26%

(2021/22)

20.94%

(2022/23) Bad
Bi-annual

Community Life Survey 

2020/21

27%

Q1 2023/24 data 

available in September 

2023

% of Talkabout panel who give unpaid 

help to any group, club or organisation

61.35%

(2021/22)

60.64%

(2022/23)
Bi-annual

Community Life Survey 

2020/21

62%

Q1 2023/24 data 

available in September 

2023

Parliament Street Footfall
6,869,593

(2022/23)

1,848,762

(Q1 2023/24)
Monthly Not available

Q2 2023/24 data 

available in October 

2023

Previous Data Latest Data DoT Frequency Benchmarks Data Next Available

Forecast Budget Outturn (£000s 

Overspent / -Underspent) - CYC

£4,887

(excluding 

contingency)

(2022/23)

£6,752

(excluding 

contingency)

(Q1 2023/24)

Quarterly Not available

Q2 2023/24 data 

available in October 

2023

Average Sickness Days per FTE - CYC 

(Excluding Schools) - (Rolling 12 Month)

12.73

(Q1 2022/23)

11.22

(Q1 2023/24)
Monthly

Public Sector (Y&H) 

2020/21

8

Q2 2023/24 data 

available in November 

2023

00:01:42

(Phone)

(2022/23)

00:00:15

(Phone)

(Q1 2023/24)

Monthly Not available

Q2 2023/24 data 

available in October 

2023

82.80%

(Footfall)

(2022/23)

85.90%

(Footfall)

(Q1 2023/24) Good

Monthly Not available

Q2 2023/24 data 

available in October 

2023

NC

(Webchat)

(2022/23)

NC

(Webchat)

(Q1 2023/24)

Monthly Not available

Q2 2023/24 data 

available in October 

2023

Number of days taken to process 

Housing Benefit new claims and change 

events (DWP measure)

3.19

(2021/22)

3.72

(2022/23)
Monthly Not available

Q1 2023/24 data 

available in September 

2023

% of 4Cs complaints (grade 1 and 2) 

responded to 'In Time'

94.56%

(2022/23)

96.12%

(Q1 2023/24)
Monthly Not available

Q2 2023/24 data 

available in October 

2023

% of 4Cs complaints (grade 1 only) 

responded to 'In Time'

86.15%

(2022/23)

87.50%

(Q1 2023/24)
Monthly Not available

Q2 2023/24 data 

available in October 

2023

FOI & EIR - % Requests responded to 

In time - YTD

85.50%

(2022/23)

89.30%

(Q1 2023/24)
Good

Quarterly Not available

Q2 2023/24 data 

available in October 

2023

CYC Apprenticeships
24

(2022/23)

21

(Q1 2023/24)
Quarterly Not available

Q2 2023/24 data 

available in October 

2023

The DoT (Direction of Travel) is calculated on the latest three data points whether they are annual or quarterly.

All historic data is available via the Open Data Platform

Customer Services Waiting Times - 

Phone / Footfall / Webchat

The DoT (Direction of Travel) is calculated on the latest three data points whether they are annual or quarterly.

All historic data is available via the Open Data Platform

Safe Communities and culture for all

An open and effective Council

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank



City of York Council Constitution
Appendix 5: Scrutiny Procedure Rules

____________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________
Appendix 5: Scrutiny Procedure Rules
Reviewed: May 2022

Annex 2 - Call-in Request Form

This form must be completed and signed by THREE City of York
Councillors and MUST be returned to Democratic Services within
5 working days of the decision being published (not including the
day of publication).

Decision taker:

Date of publication of
decision:
Title of Decision Called
in:
Date Decision Called in:

REASONS FOR CALL-IN
Tick which
reason applies

1. Decision contrary to the policy framework?

2. Decision contrary to or not wholly consistent with the
budget?

3. Decision is Key but it has not been dealt with in
accordance with the Council’s Constitution.

4. Decision does not follow principles of good decision-
making set out in Article 7 of the Council’s Constitution.
If reason 4, please tick which specific element of Article 7the decision
maker has not followed, did he or she not:
(a) Meaningfully consider all alternatives and, where

reasonably possible, consider the views of the
public.

(b) Understand and keep to the legal requirements
regulating their power to make decisions.

(c) Take account of all relevant matters, both in
general and specific, and ignore any irrelevant
matters.

(d) Act wholly for proper purpose and/or in the

x

Executive

15 September 2023

Finance and Performance Monitor 21:
x. Confirmed that the officer decision around ward funding
allocations is implemented as planned (see paragraphs 30 to 31
of the report)
18 September 2023

x

Page 49



City of York Council Constitution
Appendix 5: Scrutiny Procedure Rules

____________________________________________________________________

interests of the public.
(e) Keep to the rules relating to local government

finance.
(f) Follow procedures correctly and be fair.

(g) Make sure they are properly authorised to make
the decisions.

(i) Take appropriate professional advice from
Officers.

Detailed Reason(s) for Call-in.
The

The reasons in 4 above differs from those in the constitution, but we have chosen
to tick the one which most closely matches those in the constitution.

We believe the decision breaches Principles of Decision Making c) clarity of aims
and desired outcomes, and j) consideration of relevant implications.

The stated outcome is to target funding at more deprived wards, however an error
in the funding fomula means this does not happen. The Executive Report states
that (at 31) “The decision reflects that a standard amount of the funding is still applied
on a per councillor basis, but a proportion is allocated using the Indices of Multiple
Deprivation, including a weighting which reflected the population of each ward.”

However this is not the case, as each calculation of the average score for each ward
includes both a multiplication and a division by population - meaning the
population element is ultimately removed.

The population weighting only applies to the weighting of the individual LSOA
scores within the ward - so the ward’s score is weighted by population of the
relevant LSOAs, but this is not then itself weighted when comparing the ward score
to other wards and allocating the funding.

The equation for each ward’s allocation (e.g. With just two LSOAs) is:

Ward IMD Score = (LSOA 1 Pop x LSOA 1 IMD) + (LSOA 2 Pop x LSOA 2 IMD)
LSOA 1 Pop + LSOA 2 Pop

The allocation of funding is then made using this equation:

Ward Funding = Ward IMD Score x Total Funding (£145,000)
Total of Ward IMD Scores

This error means that larger wards are disadvantaged as their population is not
taken into account compared to smaller wards.

This means that there is little correlation between funding per resident and the
ward’s level of deprivation - negating the whole point of the changes.

Page 50



City of York Council Constitution
Appendix 5: Scrutiny Procedure Rules

____________________________________________________________________

____________________________________________________________________
Appendix 5: Scrutiny Procedure Rules
Reviewed: May 2022

For office use only:

Received on behalf of the Monitoring Officer by: (signature)

Name: Date: Time:

Validation Check (if necessary):

Monitoring Officer / Chief Operating Officer

Valid: YES / NO

Reason:

Completed by: (signature)

Date: Time:

Name (please
print)

Signature (please note that signatures
will not be published with the agenda.
Electronic signature will be accepted)

Date

1.
2.
3.

Andrew Hollyer

Anne Hook

Darryl Smalley

18/09/23

18/09/23

18/09/23

Andrew Hollyer

Anne Hook

Darryl Smalley

Page 51



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 Declarations of Interest
	3 Minutes
	4 Called-in Item:
	Annex A Extract from the Decision Sheet Executive 140923
	Annex B Q1 23-24 Finance and Performance Monitor report Final
	Annex B Q1 23-24 Finance and Performance Monitor report.pdf
	Annex B Annex 1 - Q1 Performance Tables - Council Plan Outcomes for Strategic Indicators 2019-23.pdf

	Annex C call in request form_AH


